UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
NORTHERN DISTRICT OF NEW YORK

STATE OF NEW YORK; DAVID A. PATERSON,
in his capacity as Governor of the State of New Y ork;

ANDREW M. CUOMO, in his capacity as Attorney
Generd of the State of New Y ork; MADISON
COUNTY, NEW YORK; and ONEIDA COUNTY,
NEW YORK,

Rantiffs, COMPLAINT
— egang —

DIRK KEMPTHORNE, Secretary, United States
Department of the Interior; JAMES E. CASON,
Associate Deputy Secretary of the Interior; P. LY NN
SCARLETT, Deputy Secretary of the Interior;
FRANKLIN KEEL, Eastern Regiona Director,
Bureau of Indian Affairs,

Defendants.

NATURE OF THE ACTION

1 This action is brought to overturn the extraordinary and unlawful decision of the
Secretary of Interior (the “ Secretary”) to take into trust for the Oneida Indian Nation of New Y ork (the
“OIN") 13,003.89 acres of land scattered over atwo-county areain Centra New Y ork (the
“Determination”) which Determination was st forth in a Record of Decision (the“ROD”) issued on
behdf of the Secretary on May 20, 2008. The purpose of this unprecedented decision isto remove
forever the land currently held in fee smple by the OIN from the tax and regulatory jurisdiction of the

State of New York (the“ State” or “New Y ork™), the Counties of Madison and Oneida, New Y ork



(together, the “ Counties”) and numerous cities, towns and villagesin which theland islocated. The
Determination, if sustained, will fundamentally and permanently dter the character and governance
structure of the affected areas and adversdy and irreparably impact the financid stability of those
communities.

2. The Determination is unauthorized by law. The statutory provison relied upon by the
Secretary — the so-cdled land into trust section of the Indian Reorganization Act (“IRA”) of 1934 — 25
U.S.C. 8§ 465 (“ Section 465") — contains no standard whatsoever to govern the Secretary’ s decison
and is an impermissible and uncongtitutiona delegation of Congressond power. That provisonis, in
any event, not gpplicable to the OIN which, as contemplated by the IRA, long ago elected to rgect the
provisons of the IRA. Having done so, the tribe cannot move or make use of Section 465. The
Determination is aso arbitrary and capricious, an abuse of discretion, in excess of the Secretary’s
datutory authority, and otherwise not in accordance with law.

3. The Determination, and the process by which it was reached, reved the errors that
result, and the rights that are unfairly compromised, when an adminigirative agency unfettered by
legidatively defined standards is authorized to remove land in populated areas long governed by state
and loca governments from the jurisdiction of those authorities without any legidatively defined
standards.

4, From the outset, the handling of the OIN land into trust application by the Department
of the Interior (the “DOI” or “Department”), including its Bureau of Indian Affairs (the“BIA”), has been

heavily biased in favor of the OIN. The Department entrusted the OIN with the selection of an outsde



vendor to prepare an environmental impact statement and creating part of the record on which the
Secretary’ s decison purportsto rely. The Department then acquiesced in the OIN’s oversight and
direction of the vendor selected by the OIN, Macolm Firnie, Inc. (“Macolm Firnie’). Upon
information and belief the OIN — an interested party — had open and continuous access to Macolm
Firnie and DOI staff responsible for reviewing and making a recommendation concerning the OIN land
trust gpplication. In contrast the DOI repeatedly refused to permit other interested parties— the State
and the Counties — to have access to the information and materias provided by the OIN to Macolm
Pirnie or to the DOI that ostengibly support the Determination.

5. The Determination itsdlf is fundamentally a odds with the legidative policy that underlies
Section 465 and the IRA. That statute was intended to put a stop to alotment of Indian lands pursuant
to the federa policy et forth in the Dawes Act of 1887, and to redress the loss of Indian lands under
the allotment system.  Section 465 was designed to provide for acquidition of “smal tracts of land” to
dlow “landless’ Indians or tribes to become economicaly sef-aufficent — aleve of economic well-
being for atribe and its members on par with non-Indians in the areas in which the Indians reside.

6. The Indian Gaming Regulatory Act (*1GRA™) has conferred enormous financia benefits
on tribes like the OIN that are Situated near large population centers. The OIN has more than achieved
economic self-sufficiency through a casino that has generated over $300,000 in annua revenue per
enrolled tribal member, and thereis no need to take into trust anything more than the land on which the
casino Ststo accomplish that end. Taking into trust for the OIN (or other tribes smilarly Stuated) land

that will be used for additional economic development subverts the limited congressona god underlying



Section 465 of relieving economic distress of tribes that had been subjected to the debilitating
consequences of the federal alotment policy and converts the statute into a mechanism for the
concentration of great economic wedth in the hands of a sdect few Indian tribes. No federd policy
supports the creation of super-rich tribal nation states, fed by tax-exempt gaming revenues, that can
remove endless amounts of land from local and state regulation and taxation if, in the view of the
Department, such remova furthers some amorphous god of economic development or tribal sdlf-
government.

7. The problem is highlighted by the Determination, which does not preclude future
applications by the OIN to take additiond land into trust and places no limit on the amount of land that
ultimately may be taken into trust for the OIN. Section 465, under which the Secretary purportsto rely,
itsdlf places no limit on the amount of land that may be taken into trust for atribe and contains no
gtandard by which such determinations are made by the Secretary. And it is clear that the OIN fully
intends to continue to acquire land and have it taken into trust. Indeed, the OIN, through Nation
Representative, Ray Halbritter, described the Determination as an “initia step toward further securing
our Oneida homeands” With access to untaxed and essentidly unlimited gaming revenues the OIN
have both the capacity and will to acquire unlimited amounts of land in New Y ork and to seek to
displace gate and locd jurisdiction through the land-into-trust mechanism.

8. The Department’ s purported use of Section 465 to take land into trust in these

circumstances is an improper interference in state governmenta authority that causes needless economic



injury to the State and its subdivisons and will only exacerbate existing tensons between Indian and
nor+Indian communities.

0. This action is brought by the State of New Y ork, David A. Paterson, in his capacity as
Governor of the State of New Y ork, Andrew M. Cuomo, in his capacity as Attorney Generd of the
State of New Y ork, the County of Madison, and the County of Oneida (collectively, “Plantiffs’)
pursuant to the Administrative Procedures Act (“APA”), 5 U.S.C. § 701, et seg. for a permanent
injunction preventing transfer of title of the OIN land to the United States, and a declaration thet the
Determination was arbitrary and capricious, an abuse of discretion, in excess of the Secretary’s
Satutory authority, uncongtitutional, and otherwise not in accordance with law. The Plaintiffs seek a
further declaration that the Determination was made in violation of the Freedom of Information Act, 5
U.S.C. 8552 (“FOIA™), the Nationa Environmental Policy Act, 42 U.S.C. §4321, et seq.
(“NEPA”), and the criteriafor taking land into trust found at 25 C.F.R. 88 151.10 and 151.11.

JURISDICTION AND VENUE

10.  ThisCourt hasjurisdiction pursuant to 28 U.S.C. 88 1331 and 1361, which provide
origind jurisdiction in suits involving questions arising under federa law and suits to compd actions by
federal agencies.

11.  ThePaintiffs request for declaratory and injunctive relief is authorized by 28 U.S.C. 88

2201 and 2202. There currently exists an actua controversy between the parties.



12.  Judicid review is authorized by the Adminigtrative Procedure Act, 5 U.S.C. § 701, et
Seg., because the Defendants decision to take 13,003.89 acres of land into trust constitutes afina
decison made on behdf of the Secretary and is not subject to further adminigirative review.

13.  Venueinthis Court is proper under 28 U.S.C. 88 1391(b)(2), and 1391(¢)(2) and (3),
and 5 U.S.C. § 703 because a substantia part of the events giving rise to the clams occurred in this
Didrict; the property that is the subject of the action is Stuated in this Didrict; and Plaintiffsresdein this
Didrict.

PARTIES

14. Pantiff State of New York isabody politic and sovereign entity and this actionis
brought in protection of the State' s condtitutionally reserved powers, governmenta rights, and property
interests, including its authority to tax and regulate the land, and activities on the land, within its borders.

15.  Pantiff David A. Paterson, in his capacity as Governor of the State of New York, is
the Chief Executive officid of the State. Governor Paterson brings this action in his officid capecity.

16. Paintiff Andrew M. Cuomo, in his capacity as Attorney Generd of the State of New
York, isthe chief legd officer of the State. Attorney Generd Cuomo bringsthis action in his officid
capacity.

17. Aaintiff County of Madison, New Y ork isamunicipa government organized in 1806
under the congtitution and laws of the State of New Y ork.

18. Haintiff County of Oneida, New Y ork isamunicipa government organized in 1798

under the condtitution and laws of the State of New Y ork.



19. Defendant United States Department of the Interior is an agency of the United States,
Dirk Kempthorne is the Secretary of the Interior; P. Lynn Scarlett is the Deputy Secretary of the
Interior; James E. Cason is the Associate Deputy Secretary of the Interior; and Franklin Ked isthe
Regiond Director for the Eastern Regiond Office of the Bureau of Indian Affairs (“BIA”). These
defendants are responsible officers of the United States. Each bears respongbility for the decision to
take into trust the land at issue.
FACTS

The Higory of the Land

20.  Thelandsthat are the subject of the Determination are part of the lands that were ceded
by the Oneida Indians “to the people of the State of New Y ork forever” in 1788 and are located within
an approximately 250,000-acre area that was transferred to the State in a series of transactions
beginning in 1795.

21, Asthe lands were transferred the Oneidas moved off the land and the area was rapidly
populated by non+Indians. By the mid-1800' s there were only 600 Oneidasin New Y ork and there
were only 500 acresin Oneida hands; by the latter part of the nineteenth century that number had
dwindled to 32 acres.

22.  Infact, many of the Oneidas|eft New Y ork entirely or disassociated themselves from
the tribal remnants that would become the OIN. For example, The Oneida Tribe of Indians of

Wisconsin, The Oneida of the Thames, The Stockbridge- Munsee Community, and the New Y ork



Brothertown Indian Nation have dl aleged in federd court that they have an interest in the subject
lands.

23.  Sincethe mid 1800’ s the area has been populated predominately by non-Indians.
Today, there are about 235,469 people living in Oneida County and some 70,337 living in Madison
County. Substantially lessthan 1% are recorded as American Indians and Alaskan Native persons.

24.  Thetowns, villages and counties that exist today were established in the late eighteenth
and early nineteenth century. Sovereignty over the land which the OIN now seeks to have taken into
trust passed to the State of New Y ork directly from the British Crown during the Revolutionary War.
At dl rlevant times, the State and municipa governments have exercised jurisdiction over such land.
The State has never ceded jurisdiction over such land to the United States or agreed that the State's
jurisdiction could be impaired or limited by taking the land into trust.

25.  Beginninginthemid-1990' s the OIN acquired approximately 17,000 acres of land in
fee ample with revenues generated from the conduct of agaming facility of questionable legdity
described below.

The 1993 Gaming Compact

26. In the early 1990's, the OIN sought to negotiate a compact with the State that would
permit it to conduct casino type gaming under the Indian Gaming Regulatory Act (“IGRA”), 25 U.S.C.
§ 2701 et seq. In order to conduct lawfully such gaming under IGRA, atribe must negotiate and enter

into avaid compact with the State in which the gaming is to be conducted; the gaming must be



conducted on “Indian lands’ as defined in IGRA; and the gaming must be conducted in accordance with
atriba ordinance adopted by the tribe having jurisdiction over such land.

27. In 1993, then-Governor Mario Cuomo and Ray Halbritter, Nation Representative of
the OIN, signed a gaming compact (the “Compact”).

28.  Theresdfter, the OIN congtructed a gaming facility on land acquired and held in fee by
the OIN and located in Verona, New York. The OIN commenced gaming &t its Turning Stone Resort
& Cagno (“Turning Stone Casno”) in 1993 in the face of criticism of the vaidity of the compact and
questions as to whether the land on which the Turning Stone Casino was erected came within the
definition of Indian lands under IGRA.

29.  Subsequent judicid decisons have placed into doubt the legdity of the operation of the
OIN’s Turning Stone Casino.

30.  The Supreme Court of the United Statesin City of Sherrill v. Onelda Indian Nation of

New York, 544 U.S. 197 (2005) (“Sherill”), held that the OIN does not have tribd jurisdiction on
land acquired in fee such as the land on which the casino islocated. Asaresult, the casino property
cannot be consdered Indian land under IGRA, and the necessary triba ordinance (which must be
adopted by atribe with “jurisdiction” over the land on which gaming is to be conducted) is lacking.

31 Nonetheless, the OIN has continued to operate the casino, and the United States,
which is charged with enforcement of IGRA, hasfaled to fulfill its satutory responsbility to require the
OIN to comply with IGRA. The DOI evidently intends to cure the lack of “Indian land” status of the

casno property by taking the land into trust but in addressing the OIN’ s application the DOI has



refused to follow the procedures set forth in IGRA for taking into trust land that is to be used for
gaming.

Fruits of the Oneidas Operation of the Casino and Other Business Enterprises

32.  Turning Stone Casino, which congsts of amore than 1 million square foot gaming,
entertainment, and hotel complex, is an extraordinarily lucrative enterprise.

33. A report issued in 2006 by Moody’s Investors Services states that Turning Stone
Casino brought in revenues of gpproximately $330 million in the 12 month period ending June 30, 2006.

This equates to gpproximately $330,000 in revenue per enrolled member of the OIN.

34. Upon information and belief, Turning Stone Casino generated Earnings Before Interest,
Taxes, Depreciaion, and Amortization (“EBITDA”), awidely used measure of financid performance,
of no less than $107 million in the 12-month period ending June 30, 2006, which computes to over
$100,000 per enrolled member of the OIN.

35.  Uponinformation and belief, in its Fiscal Year 2005, Turning Stone Casino transferred
$45.5 million to the OIN. This equates to gpproximately $45,500 per enrolled member of the OIN
exclusve of income that OIN members receive from working a Turning Stone Casino or other OIN
enterprises.

36. Upon information and belief, the enterprise value of Turning Stone Casino and related
facilities was between gpproximately $2.15 and $2.31 billion as of December 31, 2006, which equates
to approximately $2.2 to $2.3 million per enrolled member of the OIN and $6.3 to $6.7 million per

OIN houschold.
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37.  TheOIN’sbusiness enterprises are not limited to its Turning Stone Casino. Through its
Oneida Nation Enterprises, the OIN operates a chain of 13 SavOn convenience stores, agaming
equipment manufacturer, marinas, and afishing resort which, upon information and belief, collectively
had an enterprise vaue of gpproximately $293.8 million as of December 31, 2006.

Location and Current Status of OIN-Owned Land

38. Rather than acquiring parcels that were contiguous to its casino or to the 32 acres of
land in Madison County that had been in Oneida hands for centuries, in the last 15 years the OIN has
acquired parcels that are scattered throughout Madison and Oneida counties, creating a patchwork of
holdings.

39. Following acquisition of those properties the OIN refused to pay rea property tax on
the land itself and refused to comply with state and local zoning, land use, environmental, and other
regulations. The OIN aso has refused to collect and remit state and local sales tax on sales of
products, including gasoline and tobacco, to non-Indians.

40. In 2000, the OIN brought an action to challenge the enforcement of red property taxes
againg the OIN on land it owned in the City of Sherrill. On March 29, 2005, the Supreme Court
determined that the OIN could not establish tribal sovereignty by purchasing the land and held thet the
land was not immune from loca redl property taxes.

41.  The Supreme Court in Sherrill made clear that its decision applied not only to locdl red

property taxes but to state and local regulatory laws such as zoning and land use.
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42. Inits decision the Supreme Court expressed concern about the patchwork jurisdictional
pattern that would be created if the OIN properties were removed from state and loca jurisdiction: “A
checkerboard of aternating state and triba jurisdiction in New Y ork State-created unilaterally at OIN's
behest-would serioudy burdeln] the adminigtration of state and loca governments and would adversdly
affect landowners neighboring the triba patches” Sherrill, 544 U.S. at 219-20 (interna quotations and
citations omitted).

43. Despite the Supreme Court’ s decision, the OIN has refused to pay outstanding real
property taxes or to comply with state and loca land use, zoning, environmental and other laws.

44.  TheOIN'srefusd to pay taxes has continued even after Defendant Cason informed the

OIN on June 10, 2005, that the Sherrill decision obligated the OIN to pay its property taxes or face

foreclosure of its land, and further that it was the DOI’ s policy not to accept into trust lands that are
encumbered by tax liens.

The OIN Land Into Trust Application

45.  On April 4, 2005, atwo page letter request for al OIN-owned fee lands to be taken
into trust was submitted by OIN representative Ray Habritter, to the Director of the Eastern Regiona
Office, BIA, United States Department of Interior.

46.  On September 20, 2005, the DOI advised George Pataki, then-Governor of the State
of New York, and officids of the Counties, that it would consider the gpplication to consst of land

divided into three groups: Group 1, Group 2 and Group 3.
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47.  TheDOI requested comments from Plaintiffs asto each parce grouping by specific
dates: Groups 1 and 2 by January 30, 2006, and Group 3 by March 1, 2006.

48.  Group 1 consgsof 99 parcels of land totaling approximately 3,428 acres, and is
occupied primarily by the Turning Stone Casino and other OIN-developed properties. Group 1is
located within the jurisdictional boundaries of Oneida County, with 2,196 acres located within the Town
of Verona, and 1,232 acres |located within the Town of Vernon.

49.  Group 2 congsts of 241 parcels of land totaing approximately 6,475 acres, and largely
consgts of agricultura and rura properties, aswell as OIN-developed commercia properties. Of the
6,475 acres comprising Group 2, gpproximately 1,917 acres are located within the jurisdictiona
boundaries of Madison Country, and approximately 4,557 acres are located within the jurisdictiona
boundaries of Oneida County.

50.  Group 3 conssts of 104 parcels of land, totaling 7,407 acres scattered throughout
Madison and Oneida Counties. The Group 3 parcels are generaly undeveloped, active or inactive
agriculture, and lands that are subject to a competing tribal clam by the Stockbridge-Munsee
Community of Wiscongin, an Indian Tribe located in the State of Wisconan.

The Unprecedented Nature of the OIN’s Application

51.  TheOIN’sgpplication is unprecedented in severa respects. Firgt, no Indian land in
New York isnow or has ever been held in trust for Indians by the United States. Moreover, no Indian
landsin New Y ork have been taken into trust under the IRA asthe New Y ork tribes, including the

OIN, eected not to have the IRA apply to them.
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52.  Second, the OIN’s gpplication is extraordinary in terms of the amount of land it seeks
to have taken into trust. The Secretary has never taken into trust many thousands of acres of land
scattered across populated and long established nortIndian communities in eastern states. Indeed, the
only time that a Sgnificant amount of land has been taken into trust for an eastern tribe wasin Maine
pursuant to a specific Act of Congress, and in that case the land was essentidly uninhabited. No such
Act of Congress has been enacted with regard to the OIN’ s unprecedented application.

53.  Third, the OIN holdings consst of hundreds of different and predominantly non-
contiguous parcels scattered throughout a two-county area. The OIN'’ s gpplication would permanently
create precisely the sort of patchwork jurisdiction that the Supreme Court condemned in Sherrill.

The DOI’'s Hawed Review of the OIN’s Application

54.  Asst forth above, the statute, 25 U.S.C. § 465, contains no intelligible principle to
guide the Secretary’ s decision, and this defect is not cured by the DOI’ s regulations which require the
Secretary to consider certain enumerated factors in determining whether to grant arequest to take land
into trust. See 25 C.F.R. 151.10-11. None of these factors sets forth in any meaningful, concrete way
gtandards to be employed by the Secretary in determining whether land should be taken into trust.

55.  Additionally, NEPA requires the Secretary to consider the environmenta impact of
proposas to take land into trust after soliciting the views of the locd and state governments who are
affected by the land-into-trust decison. See 42 U.S.C. § 4332(2)(C).

56.  Pursuant to NEPA, the DOI undertook to draft an Environmental Impact Statement

(“EIS’) documenting the environmental impact of the OIN’s request to take the subject land into trugt.
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57. Upon information and belief, the OIN dominated from the inception the process by
which the EIS was drafted and the DOI failed to participate meaningfully in or criticdly evaduate either
the EIS or its underpinnings as required by NEPA.

58.  TheDOI’sfalure to evauate meaningfully the EISisacrucid defect because the EIS
served as the vehicle for developing much of the factual record on which the ROD ultimately rests, and
is the basis on which the ROD purports to evauate the factors enumerated in 25 C.F.R. § 151.10.
Given that process, the redlity isthat the OIN was the principa architect of the decison onitsown
aoplication.

59. Inthefal of 2005, the DOI acceded to the OIN'’s selection of the engineering
consulting firm Macolm Pirnie to draft the EIS. Macolm Pirnie, apparently under OIN direction, had
actudly drafted sgnificant portions of the EIS even before the scope of the EIS had been findized.

60.  Following sdlection of Macolm Firnie, the DOI, the OIN, and Macolm Pirnie entered
into a three-party Memorandum of Agreement (the “MOA”) which permitted the OIN (but not the
Paintiffs) to review requests from other entities to become “ cooperating agencies’ and thus participate
in the drafting of the EIS to the extent permitted by the DOI.

61.  Thefirg gepin drafting an EISisto produce a“scoping report” which identifies the
issues to be considered in the EIS.

62.  The OIN was permitted to participate fully in drafting the scoping report. In contrast,

the Plaintiffs were not granted cooperating agency status until immediately prior to the issuance of the
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scoping report and, as aresult, were effectively excluded from the critical process of defining what
issues were to be considered in the EIS,

63. In addition, despite the fact that the Plaintiffs were each eventually designated
“cooperating agencies’ pursuant to amemorandum of understanding entered into between the parties,
the DOI refused to provide the Plaintiffs with information that was supplied by the OIN to Macolm
Firnie upon which sgnificant conclusions in the EI'S are based.

64. Plaintiffs attempted to obtain copies of the documents supplied by the OIN to Macolm
Firnie, and other documents relevant to the OIN’ s land-into-trust request, pursuant to FOIA, by making
aseries of FOIA requests to the DOI but the DOI has frustrated those attempts.

65. For example, on October 30, 2006, the Counties propounded an FOIA request on the
DOl (the " County Request”), requesting documents pertaining to the OIN’ s land into trust application.

66.  On January 10, 2007, the State propounded a similar request on the BIA, Eastern
Regiona Office (the " State Request”).

67.  The DOI responded to the County Request on March 19, 2007, estimating that it had
50,000 to 60,000 pages of responsive documentsin its possession and that such documents would cost
between $8,240 and $9,540 to produce.

68.  Thereafter, acheck in the amount of $9,540 was sent to the DOI to cover the cost of

production of the County Request.
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69.  The DOI responded to the State Request on June 25, 2007, estimating that it had
50,000 to 60,000 pages of responsive documentsin its possession and that such documents would cost
between $8,240 and $9,540 to produce.

70.  Toavoid duplicetion of efforts, the State requested that the DOI provide it with only
those documents that were both responsive to the State Request and not responsive to the County
Request. The DOI stated that it had such documentsin its possession and described those documents
as “Level One Documents.”

71.  Despite repested assurances by the DOI beginning in May, 2007 that the documents
responsive to both the County Request and State Request were being reviewed and would be
produced, as of the date of this Complaint, the DOI has not produced the requested documents or
offered any explanation for the falure to produce such documents.

OIN Use of Former Government Officias to Attempt to Influence the DOI

72.  Tosupport its gpplication, the OIN retained aformer senior officid of the DOI and the
Department of Justice who had been involved as a government officid in OIN claims againg the State
and the Counties, to lobby for the OIN with respect to the land into trust gpplication. That officid,
Thomeas L. Sansonetti, was an Assstant Attorney Genera for the Environment and Natural Resources
Divison of the Department of Justice from 2001 to 2005 and formerly ahigh ranking officid in the DOI.

Upon information and belief, in his prior positions Mr. Sansoretti had worked closaly with Defendant
Cason and othersin the DOI on maitersincluding the United States' involvement in litigetion relating to

the OIN.
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73.  Shortly after Mr. Sansonetti’ s departure from the Department of Justice, he joined the
law firm Hollad & Hart LLP. The OIN then retained Mr. Sansonetti’ s law firm for the purpose of
lobbying the DOI on its behdf with respect to the OIN’ s land-into-trust application.

74.  Federd Lobbying Disclosure formsfiled by Mr. Sansonetti’ s law firm show thet it
earned gpproximately $520,000 from this engagement for the period July 1, 2006 to December 31,
2007.

75. Upon information and belief, among other things, Mr. Sansonetti arranged for a private,
persond vist by Defendant Cason to OIN facilitiesin centrd New York. Inaddition, Mr. Sansonetti
evidently had numerous ex parte communications with Defendant Cason in an effort to convince Cason
to act favorably on the OIN application and to take dl or the vast mgority of the OIN land holdings
into trust. Documents produced to Plaintiffs concerning this activity indicate that in 2007 Mr. Sansonetti
made a*“fina entreaty” regarding the DOI’s selection of a“preferred aternative’ with respect to the
draft EIS.

The Draft and Find EIS

76.  Thedraft EIS prepared by Macolm Pirnie does not provide an objective basis for
evauating the OIN’srequest asis mandated by NEPA, the IRA, and their respective implementing
regulations. For example, while the OIN requested that approximately 17,000 acres be taken into trust,
an “Alternative B” was cong dered which contemplated the Secretary taking 35,000 acresinto trust an

amount of land the OIN neither owns nor requested be taken into trust.
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77.  Thedraft EISwas circulated following its completion and comments were accepted
from interested parties. The Plaintiffs provided the DOI with extensive comments concerning the
deficienciesin the draft EIS, including reliance on erroneous data and use of unreasonable
“taxation/jurisdiction” scenarios. The deficiencies dso included the EIS sfailure to properly consider:

@ the extraordinary wesdlth of the OIN in analyzing whether the proposed transfer of land
into trust was judtified by the need to secure the economic sdlf-sufficiency of the OIN,;

(b) the jurisdictiona and adminigrative problems that taking alarge number of non
contiguous properties into trust and arguably outside of the Plaintiffs jurisdiction would cause;

(© the environmenta impact of probable future development by the OIN on the land taken
into trust, and;

(d) the DOI’ sinability to oversee the lands taken into trust.

78.  TheDOI largdly either ignored or dismissed the PlaintiffsS comments with respect to the
draft EIS.

79.  TheFnd EIS ("FEIS’) sdects “Alterndtive |,” which was never previoudy identified to
Faintiffs and which consists of taking 13,086 acres of land into trust, as the DOI’s “ Preferred
Alternative.”

80. Despite the ample commentary provided by the Plaintiffs with respect to the draft EIS,

the FEIS:
@ relies on incorrect data and glosses over reliable data and conclusions provided by
qudified experts,
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(b) justifies taking land into trust by the OIN’s need for economic growth and sdlf-
aufficiency despite the fact that the approximately 1,000 member OIN owns extraordinarily lucrative
businesses, which upon information and belief, are worth more than $2 billion, as more thoroughly
described in paragraphs 32 to 37, and has developed this business empire without any land-into-trust
transfers,

(© falsto consder properly the costs and adminigirative problems that a more than
13,000- acre checkerboard reservation spread across two counties and numerous municipalities will
cause the affected governments;

(d) assumes that future OIN development of the land taken into trust will not be harmful to
the environment, elther individudly or in the aggregete, once the trust land is arguably taken outside of
the Paintiffs regulatory jurisdiction;

(e failsto discuss adequately the DOI’ sfisca or saffing ability to govern the land taken
into trust or the BIA, Eastern Regiona Office s ahility to manage such lands,

)] ignoresthe OIN’s past violations of federa, state and loca environmental, health, safety
and land use laws, (induding, without limitation, illegd filling of wetlands in congtruction of golf courses
and gasoline stations; construction of a co-generation energy facility without requisite Clean Air Act
permits and gpprovas, demoalition of buildings, including possibly buildings containing asbestos, without
proper permits or requisite notifications; illegal dredging of Oneida Lake; and congtruction of Turning

Stone Casino to a height five times grester than the applicable laws alowed and without compliance
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with other gpplicable laws) and accepts these continuing illegal conditions as the current “basding” from
which the OIN’ s unprecedented request for land into trust should be judged;

(s) concludes that the OIN will keep its conditiona promisesthat if the DOI grants the
OIN'’s request, the OIN will consider complying with some laws and regulations and the OIN will not
make any further changes to the use of the land despite evidence in the adminigtrative record identifying
prior Stuations where the OIN has violated federd, state, and local laws and regulations thereby
creating Sgnificant governance issues for the state and locdlities, and

(h) aso rdieson third party data, work product and anayses that are not provided in the
exhibitsto the EIS. Specificaly, the FEIS references, but does not provide, analyses, work product
and/or data from at least Six third parties, thereby preventing review, replication and vaidation of such
anayses, work product and data. Similarly, the FEIS draws its conclusions from tables and analyses
for which the underlying data were withheld from the Plaintiffs.

The Record of Decison

81l.  OnMay 20, 2008, the Secretary issued the ROD setting forth his decison to take
13,003.89 acres of OIN-owned land into trust.

82.  TheROD isabiased document.

83.  Thehiasof the ROD is gpparent from the document’ s very beginning. For example, the
ROD contains a discussion of nine dternative plans to teke land into trust denominated “Alternative A”
through “Alternative |.” The Counties proposed aternative, which cdled for taking land containing

Turning Stone Casino, dong with other lands appropriate to support the OIN’ s economic, housing, and
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sdf-determinations needs into trust, subject to certain conditions concerning the OIN’ s future conduct,
was not fully analyzed in the ROD.

84. In discussing the proposed plans the ROD sets forth the percentage of land to be taken
into trust with respect to each County rather than the municipalities most grestly affected. For example,
Alterndtive |, the DOI's preferred dternative, is described in the summary contained in Page 19 of the
ROD as representing 1.05% of the combined acreage of the Counties rather than property that, by
vaue, represents gpproximately haf of the taxable property of the VernonVerona- Sherrill Centrd
School Disgtrict and the Town of Verona.

85.  TheROD essntidly ignores the enormous revenue impact the Determination will have
on the Plaintiffs by relying on the fact that the OIN has for years refused to pay taxes on its properties.
Asaresault, according to the Determination, the effect of permanently removing the subject lands from
the Plantiffs tax rallsis amply to maintain the status quo.

86. Further, the ROD equates the OIN’s occasiond “voluntary payments’ to defray the
cost of certain services rendered by State and local governments to the OIN with tax revenue. These
payments are cited as a basis for the conclusion in the ROD that the decison to teke land into trust will
be revenue-neutrd asto the affected loca governments.

87. In fact, the OIN in the past has unilateraly discontinued such voluntary payments when
it was displeased with the recipient government. For example, in one instance, the OIN withheld
approximately $150,000 in promised “ Silver Covenant” payments to a financidly stretched school

digtrict (the Stockbridge Valley Central School Didtrict) because it refused to fire an Indian teaching
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assgtant who had joined a dissdent group of Oneida Indiansin litigation againgt the OIN. Upon
information and belief, this“ Silver Covenant” payment was sgnificant to the Stockbridge Vdley Centrd
School Didtrict because it was the only payment received from the OIN notwithstanding the fact that the
OIN owned gpproximately 16% of the land within its geographic boundaries.

88. In another ingtance, the OIN unilateraly decided to change the formula under which it
paid for thefire fighting services rendered by the Verona Volunteer Fire Department to the OIN &t its
Turning Stone Casino.

89.  Thisdecison was extraordinarily detrimenta asthe Town of Verona (population 6,425)
has limited need, apart from that crested by the OIN, for the type of fire fighting apparatuses and
expertise necessary to protect the over 1,000,000 square foot Turning Stone Casino complex.

90. TheFEISand ROD andyze the effect of Turning Stone Casino and dl other OIN
enterprises closing despite the lack of any evidence whatsoever that this would occur should the
Secretary deny, inwhole or in part, the OIN’s gpplication to take land into trust. This scenario, of
course, makes the Determination ook like the better dternative. This scenario is so implausible that the
ROD repeatedly states, without explanation since none is needed, that the “ Department disputes’ it.

91. TheROD dsoingppropriately attributes taxes paid by others, such as employees of the
OIN, to the OIN for purposes of andyzing the extent to which the Determination deprives the Plaintiffs

of tax revenues.
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92. In addition to the forgoing, the State and Counties, among other persons and entities,
each submitted comments with respect to the FEIS that were ignored or inadequately addressed in the
ROD.

FIRST CAUSE OF ACTION

25U.S.C. §465ISAN UNCONSTITUTIONAL
DELEGATION OF LEGISLATIVE AUTHORITY

93. Repeat and redllege the alegations of paragraphs 1 to 92 asif fully set forth herein.

94. It isfundamenta that Congress may not delegete its policymaking functions to an
adminidrative agency in the absence of an “intdligible principle’ that limits the agency’ s exercise of that
authority.

95.  Section 465 violates these precepts by giving the Secretary of the Interior unbounded
discretion to acquire land “for the purpose of providing land for Indians.” The gtatute contains no
limiting standards. The regulations, which cannot in any event provide a andard where the Satute
contains none, are smilarly lacking in any meaningful sandard. Those regulaions merdly list factors that
the Secretary should consider when taking land into trust, but place no boundaries upon that authority.

96.  Theddegation of unbounded discretion to the DOI is particularly offensve to the
Condtitution because the DOI is afederdly mandated trustee of Indian lands. The lack of any atutory
limits on the Secretary’ s exercise of discretion when deciding to take land into trust, when considered
together with the DOI’ sindtitutiona biasin favor of Indians, crestes a decisonmaking process that is

unbalanced and unfair.
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97.  Asaresult, Section 465 is an uncongtitutiona delegation of legidative authority, isin

violation of the separation of powers principles contained in the Congtitution, and isinvdid.
SECOND CAUSE OF ACTION
25U.S.C. 8465, ASAPPLIED, VIOLATESTHE TENTH AMENDMENT

98. Repest and redllege the alegations of paragraphs 1 to 97 asif fully set forth herein.

99.  The Tenth Amendment reserves to the States, or the People, those powers not granted
to the United States by the U.S. Condtitution.

100. The State has continuoudy exercised jurisdiction over itslands since the adoption of the
U.S. Condgtitution, including the lands which are the subject of the Determination, and has never
consented to the remova of such land from State jurisdiction.

101. TheU.S. Congitution does not grant to the United States the authority to remove land
from a State’ sjurisdiction for the purpose of providing such land to an Indian tribe without first obtaining
the consent of the affected State.

102. TheU.S. Condtitution clearly enumerates those limited instances where the United
States has the authority to remove lands from a State' sjurisdiction. For example, Article |, Section 8,
Clause 17 of the U.S. Condtitution grants Congress the power “[t]o exercise exclusve Legidation in al
Cases whatsoever... over al Places purchased by the Consent of the Legislature of the Satein
which the Same shall be, for the Erection of Forts, Magazines, Arsends, dock-Y ards, and other
needful Buildings.” (emphasis added). Similarly, no other provison of the U.S. Congdtitution authorizes

the Secretary to remove the subject lands from the State’ s jurisdiction without its consent.
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103. The State has not consented to the Secretary’ s decision to remove the subject lands
from itsjurisdiction.

104. Articlel, Section 8, Clause 3 of the U.S. Congtitution confers upon Congress the
power “[t]o regulate “commerce ... with the Indian tribes’ but regulation of commerce with Indian
tribes does not extend to removal of land located within states from state and locd jurisdiction

105.  Section 465 far exceeds the power granted to Congress to regulate commerce with the
Indian tribes, is unauthorized by any other provision of the U.S. Congtitution, and deprives the State of
its sovereignty with respect to lands taken into trust.

THIRD CAUSE OF ACTION
25U.SC. 8465 DOESNOT APPLY TO THE OIN

106. Repeat and redlege the dlegations of paragraphs 1 to 105 asif fully set forth herein.

107.  Section 465 was enacted as part of the IRA. That statute was intended to put a stop to
alotment of Indian lands pursuant to the federa policy set forth in the Dawes Act of 1887, and to
redress the loss of Indian land under the alotment system.

108. The provisons of Section 18 of the IRA (25 U.S.C. § 478) condition gpplication of the
IRA on avote of the affected Indians. When amgority of the adult Indiansin areservetion “shdl vote
agang gpplication” of the Act, it “shal not apply.” Following the adoption of the IRA, the Oneldas (as
well as other New Y ork Indians) voted to reject the IRA.

109. Under the plain terms of Section 478, Section 465 is not available to the OIN.
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110. By purporting to take land into trust for the OIN under Section 465, the Secretary
acted in excess of his authority and not in accordance with law.

111.  Although the ROD cites 25 U.S.C. § 2202, which gtatesthat “[t]he provisons of
Section 465 of this Title shdl gpply to dl tribes notwithstanding the provisons of Section 478 of this
Title,” it does not mention 25 U.S.C. 8§ 2201, which defines “tribe” to mean “any Indian tribe, band,
group, pueblo, or community for which, or for the members of which, the United States holds landsin
trust.”

112.  Sincethe United States held no OIN land in trust prior to the time of the trust
application, the OIN was not a “tribe” within the meaning of Section 2202, and Section 2201 therefore
makes Section 465 unavailable to the OIN.

113.  Section 465 does not authorize the Secretary to take land into trust for the benefit of the
OIN for the separate reason that Section 465 authorizes the acquisition of lands only “for the purpose
of providing land for Indians.”

114. 25U.S.C. 8479 defines“Indians’ for purposes of the IRA to “include all persons of
Indian descent who are members of any recognized tribe now under federd jurisdiction.” (emphasis
added) Upon information and belief, the OIN does not meet this requirement as the OIN was not a
“recognized tribe now under federd jurisdiction” as of the date of the IRA’s enactment in 1934.

115.  Accordingly, the Secretary may not take the subject land into trust for the benefit of the
OIN becausethe IRA, by its express terms, dlows land to be taken into trust only for the benefit of

tribes that were federally recognized as of the IRA’s 1934 enactment.
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116. Notably, the ROD does not consider in ameaningful or complete way the absence of
statutory authority as required by Section 151.10(a) of its own regulations.

117. Inlight of the fact that thereis no statutory authority for the Secretary to take land into
trust for the OIN, the Determination was arbitrary and capricious, an abuse of discretion, in excess of
the Secretary’ s statutory authority, and otherwise not in accordance with law.

FOURTH CAUSE OF ACTION

THE DETERMINATION WASNOT IN ACCORDANCE WITH LAW BECAUSE IT
WASMADE CONTRARY TO PRIOR DOI POLICIES

118. Repeat and redlege the dlegations of paragraphs 1 to 117 asif fully set forth herein.

119. Thepurposeof 25 U.S.C. § 465 isto enable landless Indian tribes or tribes with
inadequate land resources to become economically sdlf-sufficient.

120. Conggtent with this purpose, the DOI, higtoricaly, has taken the postion that it will not
take additiona land in trust from tribal groups that have the ability to manage their own affairs and who
have been highly successful through their own efforts.

121. The OIN has earned hundreds of millions of dollars from its business activities, which
clearly demondratesits “ability to manage its own affairs’ and the success of its own efforts.

122. The DOI’slongstanding policy has been not to take land into trust unless marketable
title may be conveyed to the DOI by the fee owner of the property. The OIN lands are subject to
outgtanding tax liens, which under well-established principles render title unmarketable. The

Determination nonethel ess proposes to take such land into trust.
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123. Evenif Section 465 was condtitutional and available to the OIN (which it is not) the
Determination is antithetical to the policies underlying that statute and adopted by the DOI.
FIFTH CAUSE OF ACTION

THE DETERMINATION WASINFECTED WITH BIASTOWARD THE OIN IN
VIOLATION OF THE PLAINTIFFS CONSTITUTIONAL DUE PROCESSRIGHTS

124. Repest and redlege the dlegations of paragraphs 1 to 123 asif fully set forth herein.

125. Due process requires that the determination to take land into trust be made in an
impartid manner.

126.  The manner in which the Determination was made reflected biasin favor of the decison
to take the subject lands into trust.

127.  For example, Macolm Rirnie, which drafted the EI'S upon which the Determination was
based, was selected and compensated by the OIN.

128.  Such sdection was memoridized in the MOA entered into during December 2005 by
and between Macolm Pirnie, the BIA, and the OIN. The State and Counties were not parties to the
MOA nor asked or permitted to provide input in selecting the party to draft the EIS.

129. The sdlection process was run entirely by the OIN and its outside counsdl. Inan
October 12, 2005 |etter to Franklin Ked, Regiona Director, BIA Eastern Regional Office, the OIN’s
outside counsdl, Zuckerman Spaeder LLP (* Zuckerman Spaeder”), noted that Zuckerman Spaeder

itself had both created the list of potentia candidates for the project and conducted the initid screening
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and in-person interviews of the candidates it had identified. The letter Satesthat “Macolm Pirnie
emerged as the best candidate selected for the project, subject to the [BIA’S] concurrence.”

130. The sameletter requested that the DOI approve the sdection of Macolm Pirnie on the
basis of background information on the four findist candidates appended to the letter. Such
background information consisted nearly entirely of printouts from publicly available webgtes.

131. TheEIS shiasreflects the fact that the EIS is an advocacy piece that was
commissioned by the OIN’s outside counsd rather than an objective evauation of the environmental
consequences of taking the subject lands into trust as is mandated by NEPA and its implementing
regulations.

132. Many dements of the EIS were, in fact, agreed to between Macolm Pirnie and the
OIN prior to the start of the EIS process. On October 6, 2005, Macolm Pirnie prepared an “outline”’
of the EIS which described the content of the EIS including the predetermined conclusion that there was
“need” to take lands into trust on behdf of the OIN and that the “[e]xisting condition of [the subject]
landsis the basdline going forward for impact assessment.”

133. Additiondly, as set forth in paragraphs 64 to 71 above, the DOI ignored its obligations
under FOIA. The DOI has acknowledged that its own regulations and FOIA require it to produce the
documents upon which the EI'S was based, and in fact the DOI accepted a check from the Plaintiffsin
the sum of $9,540 for the production of such documents. Nevertheless, the DOI has yet to provide the

documents upon which the EIS was based to the Plaintiffs.
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134. Theactionsof the DOI in violation of FOIA further reflect the DOI and the BIA' s bias
in favor of taking the subject landsinto trust. The DOI’ sfailure to produce the requested documents
deprived Plaintiffs of their due process rights to address the evidence submitted in support of the OIN’s
aoplication.

135. The DOI’s biased consderation of the OIN’s land into trust gpplication is consistent
with the fact that the OIN dominated the EI'S process by hiring aformer DOI and DOJ officid, whose
officias duties, among others, concerned the United States involvement in litigation relating to the OIN
as described in paragraphs 72 to 75, above.

136. The Secretary’ s andysis of the evidence and factsin reaching the decision was not fair,
impartia, objective or reasonable.

137.  Accordingly, the Determination was arbitrary and capricious, an abuse of discretion,
and otherwise not in accordance with law.

SIXTH CAUSE OF ACTION

THE DETERMINATION WASMADE WITHOUT REGARD TO THE RELEVANT
FACTORSUNDER 25 CFR PART 151

138. Repeat and redlege the allegations contained in paragraphs 1 to 137 asif fully st forth
herein.

139. Defendants wrongfully gpplied the regulationsin 25 C.F.R. 8 151.10 in granting the
application because the Defendants wrongfully characterized the OIN’ s land-into-trust gpplication asan

“on-reservation” request.
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140.  Section 151.10 applies only to land located within an “Indian reservation.” The
definitiona section of the DOI’ s regulations gpplicable to land-into-trust application defines “Indian
Reservation” as “that area of land over which the tribe is recognized by the United States as having
governmentd jurisdiction . . ..” The United States does not recognize the OIN as having governmentd
jurisdiction on any of the land that is the subject of the land into trust gpplication, afact thet is clear from
Sherill.

141. Indeciding that the OIN had no right to exercise triba sovereignty on the subject lands,
the Supreme Court in Sherrill held in substance that the land lacked reservation (and Indian country)
gatus. The language of the Court’ s decision, which repeatedly characterized the reservation in the past
tensg, is entirely congstent with that conclusion.

142.  Consequently, the application should have been treasted under 25 C.F.R. § 151.11.

143.  Section 151.11 requiresthat greater weight be given to state and loca concernsin
assessing the gpplication.

144.  Inany event, the factors set forth in both sections 151.10 and 151.11 militate against
taking OIN land into trust.

145. The Determination was therefore arbitrary and capricious, an abuse of discretion, and
otherwise not in accordance with law.

SEVENTH CAUSE OF ACTION
THE DETERMINATION WASMADE WITHOUT REGARD TO 25 C.F.R. § 151.10(b)

146. Repeat and redlege the dlegations of paragraphs 1 to 145 asif fully set forth herein.
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147.  Assuming arguendo that Section 151.10 gppliesto the review of the OIN’s
application, 25 C.F.R. § 151.10(b) directs the Secretary to consider the tribe's need for the additional
land. The ROD datesthat “a demondtration of necessity may take into account ... economic need and
may aso consider the tribe's need for land to support salf-determination and triba housing.”

148. The ROD contains no findings that support a conclusion that taking any amount
approaching 13,003.89 acres of land into trust is necessary to satisfy any of these gods. Aside from
generd assartions such as that the Determination will “ support[] triba economic development,” (ROD at
35) which is doubtless true whenever land is exempted from taxation and removed from loca regulatory
jurisdiction to which surrounding land held by non+Indians is subject, the ROD contains no
particularized explanation for why the OIN “needs’ to have 13,000+ acres of land taken into trust.

149. Thereis no reason why the OIN needsto, or should, enjoy the significant economic
advantages over surrounding non-Indian businesses that come with having its land exempt from loca
taxes.

150. Turning Stone Casino and related facilities, which are located on 225 acres of land, are
more than sufficient to secure the economic saf-sufficiency of the OIN and its members. Upon
information and belief, the enterprise value of Turning Stone Casino and related facilities was between
approximately $2.15 and $2.60 hillion as of December 31, 2006, which equates to approximately $2.2

to $2.6 million per enrolled member of the OIN and $6.3 to $6.7 million per OIN household.
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151. Nor cantribd sdf-determination or housing justify the massive trandfer of land into trust
contemplated by the ROD. Together with the casno property, the land on which much of the OIN’s
governmenta offices and housing for its members are located comprise dightly more than 1,000 acres.

152. The record does not support afinding that the OIN has need for the lands to be taken
into trust. Therefore, the Determination was arbitrary and capricious, an abuse of discretion, and
otherwise not in accordance with law.

EIGHTH CAUSE OF ACTION
THE DETERMINATION WASMADE WITHOUT REGARD TO 25 C.F.R. §151.10(e)

153. Repeat and redlege the dlegations of paragraphs 1 to 152 asif fully set forth herein.

154. Asuming arguendo that Section 151.10 gppliesto the review of the OIN’s
application, 25 C.F.R § 151.10(e) directs the Secretary to consider the impact on the State and its
subdivisons of the removal of the land from the tax rolls. Here, the Secretary failed to consider
adequately thisimpact by smply daming that the impacts of removing lands from the tax rolls are not
sgnificant when balanced with the benefits to the OIN of taking the lands into trust.

155.  Sgnificantly, the decison to take the OIN land into trust removes the land from the tax
rolls of thelocdities. The decison was made without regard to the drastic consequences of this revenue
loss. The combined annud anticipated loss of county, municipa and school taxes, resulting from the
remova of al of the OIN parcels (Groups 1, 2 and 3) is estimated to be over $16.2 Million. This

number does not take into consideration potential increases in the taxes on the subject parcels due to



increases in tax rates and assessed value or increases resulting from future devel opment and
improvement of the property.

156. Given the OIN’s demonstrated historical pattern of development, it is reasonable to
assumeit will continue to develop its properties profitably, and the loss of future tax revenue will be
subgtantialy greeter in the future than is reflected by the current figures.

157.  For example, OIN-owned properties represent, by value, approximately 48% of the
taxable property in the VernonVerona-Sherrill Central School Didtrict. Such parcels represent about
$10.2 Million in school digtrict revenue annudly.

158.  Additiondly, the total amount of acreage owned by the OIN in the Town of
Stockbridge to be taken into trust alone congtitutes gpproximately 14% of the Town’ s total acreage.
The annud redl property taxes (including school taxes) in Stockbridge that would be lost on these
parcels s approximately $133,500.

159. The Town of Verona, where Turning Stone Casino is located, would be especidly
grongly impacted. The Town of Veronawould experience an annud loss of over half of its total
property tax levy.

160. Thecumulaive outstanding real property taxes on the OIN propertiesin Oneida County
isover $46 Million, and the cumulative amount of delinquent taxes on the OIN propertiesin Madison
County is$7.5 Million.

161. Thelost taxes represent a significant portion of the tota tax revenuesfor the taxing

authorities in question.
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162. Thetax effect is exacerbated by the unfair competitive advantage that the OIN would
receive by having the land held in trust. Non-Indian business unable to compete may shut down, with
an additiond loss of tax revenues to the Counties in the form of lost property and sdlestax.

163. Theloss of taxesimposes the cost of local services used by OIN enterprises and
members — schools, road and bridge maintenance and repair, police and fire protection — on asmaler
group of nor+Indian New Y orkers, increasing the cost for these services. Since the OIN receives the
benefit of those services— e.g. Oneida children attend loca schools, individua Oneidas and customers
of OIN businesses use local roads and receive police and fire protection — the non-Indian community is
footing the bill for these servicesfor the OIN. This effect is particularly acute because in some cases,
the demand for the services actualy hasincreased as aresult of OIN activity on OIN-owned land. For
example, the Turning Stone Casino has resulted in dramatically increased traffic on local streets and
higher demand for emergency services.

164.  Further, the ROD gives undue credit to the OIN for those voluntary payments it
sometimes chooses to make for municipa services. For example, the ROD refersto the OIN's
provison of fundsto the Verona Volunteer Fire Department through a*Voluntary Service Agreement.”

The ROD omits the fact that the OIN unilateraly changed the formula under which it made such
payments to the Verona Volunteer Fire Department through the VVoluntary Service Agreement. Such
payments are extraordinarily important to the Verona Volunteer Fire Department as the Turning Stone
Casino is over 1,000,000 square feet and over 20 storiestall and thusis by far the largest building in the

Verona Volunteer Fire Department’ s service area.
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165. Similarly, the ROD gives great weight to the OIN’s*norntbinding” commitment to
continue paying for various serviceswhich it or its membersuse. The ROD ignores not only the history
of the OIN’s rdationship with local governments but aso that the OIN will lose its incentive to keep
making voluntary payments after the subject lands have been taken into trust. Without judtification, the
ROD gatesthat “[i]t can reasonably be expected that the [OIN] will continue to pay loca governments
for services provided.”

166. The ROD contains unwarranted conclusions with respect to mitigation of the direct
revenue lossto Plaintiffs. One such conclusion isthat any taxes paid by an OIN employee or vendor
should be trested as payments made by the OIN for purposes of the ROD.

167. The ROD datesthat “[OIN] employees paid an estimated $5.55 millionin locd
property taxesin 2004” and further that this amount is expected to be maintained or increase through
2011 if the subject lands are taken into trust. The ROD ignores the fact that many of the OIN’s
employees do not live in the Counties or the communities mogt directly affected by the Determination
and therefore it is unreasonable to suggest that such governments are being made whole by property
taxes paid by employees of the OIN.

168.  The same unwarranted concluson isimplicit in the statement thet “[t]he [OIN] withheld
and remitted $3.38 million in New Y ork State income taxes from its employeesin 2005.” ROD at 47.

169. Moreover, the premise of the ROD’ s reliance on taxes paid by OIN employees — that

the OIN is entitled to credit for taxes paid by others — iswithout basis.
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170.  Accordingly, the Determination was arbitrary and capricious, an abuse of discretion,

and otherwise not in accordance with law.
NINTH CAUSE OF ACTION
THE DETERMINATION WASMADE WITHOUT REGARD TO 25 C.F.R. 8§ 151.10(f)

171. Repeat and redlege the dlegations of paragraphs 1 to 170 asif fully set forth herein.

172.  Assuming arguendo that Section 151.10 applies to the review of the OIN’s
application, 25 C.F.R § 151.10(f) directs the Secretary to consider jurisdictiona problems and potential
conflicts of land use that may arise. The Determination failed to consder adequately potentid land use
and other jurisdictiond problems, as detailed more fully below and in the NEPA dlam herein.

173. Taking the OIN’slandsinto trust results in an unworkable jurisdictiona patchwork
which the Supreme Court expressly sought to avoid in Sherrill. At the heart of the Court’ sdecisonin
Sherrill isthe concern that alowing tribally-owned land located randomly throughout communitiesin
Centrd New Y ork to be removed from State and loca jurisdictions would fundamentaly and
irreparably injure the affected communities by disrupting the “governance of central New York's
counties and towns.” Sherrill at 1483. The Court in Sherrill was particularly concerned about the
effects of the OIN’s position on loca zoning and land use controls.

174. The Court’s language reflects a recognition that communities cannot be maintained
without the ability to govern in a coherent and comprehensive fashion.

175. The DOI’sland-into-trust regulations were enacted before the Supreme Court decison

in Sherrill. Asareault, the regulations are silent as to evauating the checkerboard jurisdictiona
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problems that were of central concern to the Supreme Court. The problems of checker-boarding are
dismissad or outright ignored in the ROD.

176. Infact, the decison to take into trust hundreds of parcels scattered throughout Madison
and Oneida Counties, which would ingitutionaize a patchwork of triba land holdings, is an obvious
effort to circumvent the types of concerns articulated by the Court in Sherrill. 1t isdso fundamentaly a
odds with one of the core purposes of the IRA, namely, to consolidate Indian holdings.

177. The dispersed and non-contiguous character of OIN holdings creates a host of
jurisdictiona and regulatory problems.

178. Firg, the effectiveness of abody of regulatory law rests on the ability of the state or
local government uniformly to enforce certain laws throughout a broad geographic area. To the extent
taking land into trust removes a particular piece of land from the scope of regulatory law it may render
the law ineffective as to surrounding land as well.

179.  Second, granting the application may place OIN land beyond the reach of the State's
comprehensive environmenta protection program, frustrating an important New Y ork State policy of
environmenta protection.

180. Third, placing OIN land into trust may render ingpplicable to OIN lands a sgnificant
number of laws and regulations that are intended to protect the hedlth and safety of guests and
employees of business establishments, preventing the State from providing such protection to its Indian

and non-Indian citizens dike.
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181. Itisimpossbleto desgn and implement aunified and coherent zoning and land use plan
when randomly located parcels within the community are not subject to local land use laws and can be
developed for usesinconsistent with the overdl regulatory framework. To the extent that OIN land
taken into trugt statusis exempt from zoning and other land use law, it poses a Sgnificant obstacle to the
non-Indian communities’ legitimate land use planning. The effect is particularly acute on individua
landowners whose property islocated adjacent to non-conforming triba use.

182. The Determination would smilarly impair the ability of locd officias to monitor and
enforce compliance with hedlth, building, fire, and safety code requirements and other state and local
regulations designed to benefit and protect dl citizensinthe area. These include food handling laws,
weights and measures, clean indoor air act (smoking restrictions), adolescent tobacco use prevention
act, and bottle redemption and deposit. The inability to monitor and enforce compliance with these laws
may pose risks for vigtors, emergency responders, and surrounding property owners.

183. The ROD never comesto grips with these sgnificant regulatory problems. For
example, the ROD acknowledges that the OIN has not obtained building permits or abided by zoning
regulations but excuses this behavior by stating that “[o]verdl, the [OIN’] uses are generdly consistent
with loca zoning and the uses of adjacent non-[OIN] lands,” with no discussion of the fact that thisis
amply not true in anumber of critical areas, such as Turning Stone Casino.

184. Specificdly, Turning Stone Casino was congtructed on agriculturd land, forever
changed this land and was not consistent with adjacent uses. The casino complex includes a 120,000

square foot gaming floor, an arenaand a 20-gtory hotel. Upon information and belief, the casno
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complex was congtructed without regard for state and loca building, zoning, environmentd or fire
codes. Further, the structures pose unique challenges to local emergency service organizations. Upon
information and belief, the locd fire department, for example, is not experienced in dedling with firesin
high rise structures and there is a serious question as to whether there is adequate water pressure in the
areato provide sufficient water to the higher floors of the hotel in the event of afire. The ROD failsto
address these concerns, noting only that the OIN’ s construction was appropriate because it “was akey
aspect of an enterprise that is essentid to the self-sufficiency” of the OIN.

185. The ROD smilarly does not addressin any serious way theimpact of potentialy
removing OIN land from gpplication of State and loca environmentd laws. In response to comments
that the OIN would not be subject to State and loca environmenta laws if the subject lands were taken
into trust, the ROD smply notes that “[t]he Federd government supportstribal self-determination.” The
ROD additionaly notes that the OIN presently voluntarily complies with certain environmenta standards
without describing the Secretary’ s reason, if any, for believing that the OIN would continue abiding by
such standards following the subject lands being taken into trugt.

186. Accordingly, the Determination is arbitrary and capricious, an abuse of discretion, and
otherwise not in accordance with law.

TENTH CAUSE OF ACTION
THE DETERMINATION WASMADE WITHOUT REGARD TO 25 C.F.R. §151.10(g)

187. Repeat and redlege the dlegations of paragraphs 1 to 186 asif fully set forth herein.
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188. Assuming arguendo that Section 151.10 gppliesto the review of the OIN’s
application, 25 C.F.R § 151.10(g) directs the Secretary to consider whether the BIA is equipped to
discharge the additional responghilities resulting from the acquisition of the land-in-trust status.

189. While the Secretary acknowledges in the ROD that the DOI has historicaly had
difficulty administering trust lands, the ROD discusses the issue for less than one page and concludes,
disngenuously, that management will not be a problem with respect to the subject lands.

190. Theprimary judtification for such concluson is that the Determination will “impose
limited additiond responghbilities on the BIA” asthe property is being acquired for the purpose of
providing the OIN with “sovereign authority over its reacquired lands.”

191. Thisassationis, of course, entirely inconsistent with both the express and implied
assartions throughout the ROD that DOI management of the subject lands will somehow mitigate the
problems that taking the subject lands out of the Plaintiffs jurisdiction will cause the affected
communities.

192. The Determination was arbitrary and capricious, an abuse of discretion, and otherwise
not in accordance with law because the BIA is clearly ill-equipped to discharge properly the
respongbilitiesinherent in acquiring over 13,000 nortcontiguous acresin Central New York. The
Eagtern Regiond Office of the BIA, located in Nashwille, TN, is approximately 800 miles avay from
Central New York. The ROD does not address whether or how the BIA will discharge its

respongbility to administer and superintend OIN trust landsin Centrd New Y ork.
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ELEVENTH CAUSE OF ACTION

THE DETERMINATION FAILED TO TAKE INTO ACCOUNT EXISTING EASEMENTS
AND LEASESAND RIGHTSOF WAY

193. Repeat and redlege the dlegations of paragraphs 1 to 192 asif fully set forth herein.

194. The ROD datesthat “[p]lacement of the [OIN’ 5] landsinto trust will not affect any
vaid exiging rights-of-way.”

195.  Whilethis conclusory statement of law may be technically accurate it ignores the redlity
that the OIN has interfered with existing utility easements and aso ignores the fact that the
Determination does not require the OIN to waive its sovereign immunity with repect to the enforcement
of exiging essements or rights of way. Asaresult, it will be difficult or impossble for holders of
easaments or rights of way over the subject lands to enforce such easements or rights of way.

196. Theinability to enforce utility easements and rights of way on the subject lands has
crested mgor public safety hazards in the past. For example, upon information and belief and as clearly
discussed in comments from Nationd Grid Corporation, in the fal of 2005, the OIN refused to grant
the utility company Nationdl Grid access to amgor natura gas pipeline that runs under an OIN-owned
golf course until after conclusion of the golfing season. The OIN refused to grant access to such
pipeline despite the existence of avaid easement and the fact that the utility company had determined,
through remote inspection, that the pipeine was damaged. When Nationd Grid was finaly granted
access to the pipeline in December 2005, it determined that the pipeline had been damaged by the OIN
during the grading of its golf course or ingtdlation of agolf course drainage pipe. The Determination

ignored the twin uncontroverted facts that the OIN failed to honor the easement rights of National Grid,
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and it faled to comply with New Y ork’s“Dig Safdy” Program, designed to ensure that before any
excavation is undertaken, underground utilities (such as pipelines) are marked out and not ruptured.

197.  Smilarly, without prior notice to Nationa Grid, the OIN built a Heli-Pad and associated
drainage ingdlations in alocation that encroached on one of Nationd Grid's natural gas pipeline rights
of way. Such congtruction was done without regard for Nationa Grid' sright of way or the danger of
landing multi-ton helicopters in close proximity to anatura gas pipeine.

198.  Upon information and belief, the OIN interfered with a City of Oneidawater main that
crosses severd OIN parcels within a pre-existing, lavful 50 foot right-of-way. To protect water mains,
New York State law requires prior notification to the water main operator by means of a one-call
notification system of proposed excavation near awater main. The OIN hasfailed to notify the City of
Oneida of OIN actions that would restrict City access to the water main for maintenance and that would
subject the water main to possible damage. On one occasion the OIN threatened to excavate and cut
off the water main; on another occasion OIN excavated and planned to place afence on the water main
right-of-way.

199. Upon information and belief, the City of Oneida dso supplies sewer servicesto dl
properties within the City and maintains sewer line easements on OIN-owned property located in the
City. To ensure the hedth and safety of al resdents, these easements must be fully protected. An
unregulated sewer system poses obvious public hedth and safety concerns.

200. Despite the ROD’s conclusion that the Secretary’ s action will not alter easements and

rights of way, the redlity is thet taking land into trust for the OIN will impair those rightsin substantial
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part in light of the OIN’ s past posture and the sovereign immunity from suit enjoyed by the OIN and
United States.

201. The Determination was aso arbitrary and capricious, an abuse of discretion, and
exceeded the Secretary’ s statutory authority because it failed to consider whether the OIN lands may
be subject to existing easements, leases and rights of way or disregarded the existence of such
easements, leases, and rights of way and fails to condition taking of the subject lands into trust upon the
exigence of an enforcement mechanism for such easements, leases, and rights of way, such as awaiver
of sovereign immunity by the OIN and the United States.

TWELFTH CAUSE OF ACTION
THE DETERMINATION WASARBITRARY AND CAPRICIOUS, AN ABUSE OF
DISCRETION, AND OTHERWISE NOT IN ACCORDANCE WITH LAW BECAUSE THE

OIN HAD NOT SATISFIED OUTSTANDING TAX LIENS, ASREQUIRED BY 25C.F.R. §
151.13

202. Repeat and redlege the dlegations of paragraphs 1 to 201 asif fully set forth herein.

203. 25C.F.R. 8151.13 mandates that prior to taking land into trust, the Secretary “shall
require dimination” of “liens, encumbrances, or infirmities [thet] make title to the land unmarketable.”
Further, it is Departmental policy not to accept into trust lands that are encumbered by tax liens.

204. There are outstanding tax liens on the OIN lands resulting from the OIN’srefusal to pay
real property taxes required by Sherrill. Such taxes are owed by the OIN and the liens relating to those
taxes must be eiminated before the lands are taken into trust.

205. TheROD datesthat such tax liens have been*® addressed” by the OIN’ s provision of

letters of credit in favor of the Counties, the terms of which were unilaterally dictated by the OIN.
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206. Thelettersof credit did not “diminate]]” the tax liens on the subject lands or maketitle
to the subject lands “[Jmarketable’ as 25 C.F.R. § 151.13 requires prior to the Secretary taking land
into trust.

207. Infact, under New York law tax liens remain on land until the taxes are paid and the
exigence of such liens renderstitle unmarketable.

208.  Further, the letters of credit issued in favor of the Counties are highly restrictive and do
not in any event come close to guaranteeing the full amount owed by the OIN to the Counties.

209. For example, an independently conducted 2005 vauation of the 225-acre |ot that
contains Turning Stone Casino (the “ Turning Stone Lot”) estimated the value of such lot, asimproved,
to be $362.55 million.

210. The Secretary has erroneoudy determined that the OIN will only be required to provide
aletter of credit with respect to taxes due on the Turning Stone Lot based on a vauation of $22.5
million.

211. Becausethe Secretary did not require dimination of the tax liens on the subject lands or
that the OIN provide marketable title to the subject lands asis mandated by 25 C.F.R. 151.13, the
Determination was arbitrary and capricious, an abuse of discretion, and otherwise not in accordance

with law.
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THIRTEENTH CAUSE OF ACTION
THE DETERMINATION WAS ARBITRARY AND CAPRICIOUS, AN ABUSE OF
DISCRETION, AND OTHERWISE NOT IN ACCORDANCE WITH LAW BECAUSE THE
POTENTIAL ENVIRONMENTAL CONSEQUENCESOF TAKING THE LANDSINTO

TRUST WERE IGNORED IN VIOLATION OF THE NATIONAL ENVIRONMENTAL
POLICY ACT

212. Repeat and redlege the dlegations of paragraphs 1 to 211 asif fully sat forth herein.

213. The Determination failed to comply with NEPA.

214.  NEPA requires the Secretary to “take ahard look” at the environmenta impacts and
consequences of taking lands into trust.

215.  The environmenta review conducted by the DOI and the Secretary, as reflected in the
FEISissued in February 2008, erroneoudy and arbitrarily concluded that there would be no direct
environmenta impacts that would result from the transfer of lands into trust.

216. The supeficia environmenta review conducted by the DOI and the Secretary relied on
faulty logic and incorrect assumptions to rationdize the Secretary’ s decision regarding the OIN’ s trust
goplication, in violation of regulations implementing NEPA, which provide that “[e]nvironmenta impact
gatements shall serve as the means of ng the environmenta impact of proposed agency actions,
rather than judtifying decisions dready made.” 40 C.F.R. § 1502.2(g).

217. For example, the purported analyses of dternativesin the FEIS and the ROD rely on
four “taxation/jurisdiction scenarios,” two of which are: Property Taxes Not Paid and Dispute Continues
(PTNP-DC) and Casino Closes and All Enterprises Close (CC-AEC). FEIS at 2-6 to 2-61; ROD at

13-14. By accepting the draft EIS and FEIS for publication, BIA endorsed the use of these scenarios.
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218.  Asthe Pantiffs made dear in their comments, the CC-AEC scenarioisafase
“grawvman.” Indeed, the ROD itself repeatedly states, without explanation since none is needed, that the
“Department disputes’ it. Nonethdless, throughout the draft EIS and the FEIS, BIA relied on this
scenario as the principa judtification for discounting any aternative which would not result in at least
13,000 acres of land being taken into trust. Reliance on assumptions such as thesein an EIS renders
the EISinvdid and requiresanew EIS or, at least, a supplementa EIS which usesrationd assumptions
and scenarios.

219. The PTNP-DC scenario is dso used throughout the FEIS and the ROD (with no
apparent “dispute” by the Department). The PTNP-DC scenario assumes that, despite the decison in
Sherrill and the DOI'sdenid of dl or part of the OIN’sland-into-trust gpplication (meaning that denied
lands would be subject to taxation), the OIN will continue to refuse to pay legaly owing taxes. The
OIN’s pagt, current and future refusal to pay taxes regardless of decisions of the Supreme Court and
the DOI was an accepted factor in evaluating the impacts of any dternatives other than those which
granted the OIN’srequest inits entirety. Reliance on the future illegdlity of an applicant’saction is
patently unreasonable in evauating the impacts of a proposed action under NEPA.

220. The PTNP-DC scenario, which isakey part of the andysesin the FEIS and ROD,
recognizes that the OIN has not obeyed, does not obey and will not obey laws: a recognition well
founded on the OIN’s demondirated violation of land use, hedlth, safety and environmentad laws.

Nonetheless, despite the recognition of the OIN’ s expected refusal to obey laws, the FEIS, as



mitigation, expresses confidence that the OIN will obey federa law and will “consider” but not be
bound to, requirements of state and local land use, hedlth, safety and environmenta laws.

221.  Further, based on the OIN’ s incorrect assertion that its property was exempt from state
and local regulatory laws, which has now been regjected by the Supreme Court in Sherrill, the OIN has
never complied with state or local land use or environmental laws nor, in some cases, federd
environmentd laws and regulations.

222.  For example, the OIN has recently constructed and commenced operation of a co-
generation plant near their Turning Stone Casino without having first obtained the necessary permits and
approvals under the Clean Air Act, 42 U.S.C. § 7401, et seq. The OIN built Turning Stone Casino
itself without first obtaining necessary permits and gpprovas or complying with applicable State and
locd laws. Similarly, upon information and belief, the OIN has congtructed numerous golf courses
without any permits or legaly mandated environmenta review.

223.  Inaddition, upon information and belief, the OIN has violated other laws critical to the
public welfare including dumping, wetlands, and storm sewer regulations, fire safety and building codes,
and laws regulating the storage of gasoline.

224.  Upon information and belief, based on past and ongoing rapid development of land by
the OIN it is reasonably foreseesble that there will be continued devel opment thereon. The suggestion
thet the trandfer of the land into trust will not result in any changes entirdy ignores this redlity.

225.  Therecord before the DOI and the Secretary shows that the transfer of lands into trust

will have direct and sgnificant adverse environmental impacts.
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226. The concluson of DOI and the Secretary arbitrarily and capricioudy ignored the
demongtrated significant adverse environmenta impacts of taking lands into trust in the record before
them.

227.  The Determination falled to consder proper dternatives that would mitigate
environmenta impacts and consequences, as required by NEPA.

228.  Accordingly, the Determination was arbitrary and capricious, an abuse of discretion,
and otherwise not in accordance with law.

FOURTEENTH CAUSE OF ACTION

THE DOI FAILED TO CONSIDER CUMULATIVE IMPACTSOF THE TRANSFER AS
REQUIRED BY THE NATIONAL ENVIRONMENTAL POLICY ACT

229. Repeat and redlege the alegations of paragraphs 1 to 228 asif fully set forth herein.

230. TheROD gatesthat “[b]ecause the [OIN] is proposing no change in land use or
ground-disturbing activity as part of the Proposed Action, resource categories related to the physica
environment (9., soils, groundwater, air, noise, wildlife, vegetation, wetlands, etc.) would not be
subjected to unavoidable adverse impacts as aresult of implementing the Proposed Action or one of the
dternatives.” In reaching this conclusion, BIA violated the express requirements of NEPA.

231. NEPA implementing regulations expresdy require that an agency consder the direct and
indirect effects of its action aswell as the cumulative impacts of the action “when added to other past,
present and reasonably foreseeable future actions [of any agency or person].” 40 C.F.R. 881508.7;

1508.8; 1508.25(C).
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232. TheROD improperly rdlies on the inaccurate conclusions of the FEIS that “there have
not been sgnificant adverse effects on environmenta resources’ as aresult of OIN’s past management
of itslands without compliance with state — and, in some cases, federd — environmenta requirements.

In fact, the Plaintiffs have documented significant potentia and actua adverse effects of such
noncompliance on both OIN and nor-OIN lands as a result of the OIN’s noncompliance with sate
laws governing, inter alia, protection of wetlands, groundwater and surface waters and wildlife, air
emissons, solid and hazardous waste regulation, and petroleum bulk storage and spill response. Among
the known instances of OIN noncompliance resulting in adverse environmental effects are:

Congtruction and operation of amgjor air pollution source with the potentia to emit more than 150
tons per year of nitrogen oxide, without the required state and/or federa permit that woulddlow for
monitoring of emissons that directly impact air quality on non-OIN lands, including the nearby
Vernon-Verona-Sherrill Centra School Digtrict campus.

Condruction activities related to the development of Turning Stone Casino causng permanert
degtruction or impairment of state and federd jurisdictiona wetlands and consequentia impairment
of adjacent wetlands, ground and surface waters and wildlife habitat, on both OIN and non-OIN
lands.

The OIN practice of building demalition and buria of debrisonsite without regard to appropriate
disposal practices, posing adirect threat of contamination of groundwater on both OIN and nor+
OIN lands.

The OIN’ s operation of numerous gas stations without the stringent oversight of state regulations
governing the storage of petroleum, and without allowing state access for il response, which
poses a serious and imminent threat to groundwater quality on both OIN and non-OIN lands.

These past actions and others by the OIN resulting in adverse environmental impacts were required by
NEPA to be consdered by the DOI on a cumulative basis with the current transfer of land and change

of jurisdiction.
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233. Inaddition, the DOI completely failed to consder the foreseeable future actions by the
OIN that must also be consdered on a cumulative basis with the transfer of title. The DOI improperly
accepts at face vaue the OIN' s representations that there will be no change in the use of the land after
transfer. To the contrary, the OIN has repeatedly expressed its intentions to continue to expand and
diversfy its economic activity, and these future actions on lands taken into trust will foreseegbly result in
environmenta impacts on both OIN and non-OIN lands that NEPA requires the agency to consider.

234.  Accordingly, the Determination was arbitrary and capricious, an abuse of discretion,
and otherwise not in accordance with law.

FIFTEENTH CAUSE OF ACTION
THE DOI VIOLATED FOIA AND 43 C.F.R. PART 2

235. Repesat and redlege the dlegations of paragraphs 1 to 234 asif fully set forth herein.

236. Asset forthin paragraphs 64 to 71 above, Plaintiffs requested under FOIA accessto
al documents and evidence submitted in regard to the OIN’s land in trust application.

237.  The requested documentation contained the evidentiary basis upon which the DOI
would render the Determination.

238. Theahility of the Plaintiffs to exercise their congtitutiond rights to have notice and be
heard relative to the OIN'’s land-into-trust application, required open and fair access to the documents
submitted by the OIN in support of its gpplication, which were reviewed and apparently accepted

uncriticaly by the DOI in issuing the Determination.
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239. Under FOIA, the DOI ordinarily is allowed 20 workdays from the date of receipt of a
FOIA request to determine whether to grant or deny the FOIA request but is alowed to take an
additional 10 workdays to collect and examine voluminous requests.

240.  Morethan 19 months after the initid FOIA request was submitted by Plantiffs, Plaintiffs
have yet to receive the requested FOIA documents.

241. Asof the date of this Complaint, the DOI has been in receipt of acheck in the amount
of $9,540, DOI’s estimated cost for the full production of the documents responsive to the FOIA
request, for over fourteen months.

242. InMay 2007, the FOIA coordinator for the BIA’s Eastern Region Office informed
Faintiffs that the responsive FOIA documents were under review in the U.S. Solicitor’s Office and
would be provided to Plaintiffsin early June.

243.  Theresfter, Plaintiffs had regular, repeated conversations with such FOIA coordinator,
and her subsequent replacement, regarding the status of the document production in response to the
FOIA request and, each time, Plaintiffs were assured that the Solicitor’ s Office was in the process of
reviewing the documents and Paintiffs would receive the documents shortly.

244.  Inresponseto Plaintiffs frequent inquiries as to the status of the response that had
aready been paid for, on January 9, 2008 Plaintiffs received aletter from the Acting Director of the
BIA’s Eagtern Region office informing Plaintiffs that the Solicitor' s Office intended to complete its

review by January 25, 2008.
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245.  Ingood faith, Plaintiffs have relied on the DOI’ s frequent and repeated promisesto
provide the documents requested.

246. By withholding these critical documents, Defendants substantially impaired the gbility of
Paintiffs to provide meaningful comment on the draft EIS and the FEIS.

247. Defendants conduct, by failing to turn over documents necessary to evauate the land-
into-trust application despite repested requests and promises to do so, left Plaintiffs without aremedy as
an adminigrative appea would have been futile in that Defendants had continually maintained that &l of
the responsive documents were going to be produced and Plaintiffs had dready paid for the document
production.

248. Deéfendants failure to provide Plantiffs with the responsive documents pursuant to
FOIA isaviolation of FOIA and the DOI’s own regulations.

249. Defendants illegd failure to comply with Plantiffs requests presents particular
problems with respect to the request for copies of Onelda Ordinances and Codes, which Rlaintiffs have
never had the opportunity to review. The EIS listed the Oneida Ordinances and Codes in support of
DOI’s conclusion that the land transfer and accompanying change in regulatory jurisdiction would have
no environmenta impact, but aso expresdy refused to provide any comparison between Oneida and
New Y ork State regulatory provisons. Defendants' reliance upon these materias in the Determination,
and smultaneous refusdl to provide them to Plaintiffs, deprived Plaintiffs of the opportunity to respond

meaningfully to DOI’s conclusons



250. Defendants acts and omissonsin violating FOIA and the DOI’s own regulationsrise to
the level of a conditutiond violation inasmuch as that conduct deprived Plaintiffs of documentation and
information as to which public access was mandated by law and such public access was necessary for
Faintiffs to exercise their due process rights meaningfully.

SIXTEENTH CAUSE OF ACTION

THE DOI FAILED TO DISCLOSE THE DOCUMENTSUNDERLYING THE
ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT STATEMENT ASISMANDATED BY 40 C.F.R. § 1506.6

251. Repeat and redlege the alegations of paragraphs 1 to 250 asif fully set forth herein.

252. NEPA’simplementing regulations mandate thet any agency preparing an EIS “[m]ake
environmental impact statements, the comments received, and any underlying documents available to
the public pursuant to the provisons of [FOIA], without regard to the exclusion for interagency
memoranda...” 40 C.F.R. § 1506.6(f) (emphasis added).

253. Asse forth in paragraphs 235 to 250 above, the DOI has violated FOIA by failing to
produce “underlying documents’ relevant to the EIS.

254. TheDOI’sfailure to comply with FOIA, asis mandated by 40 C.F.R. 8§ 1506.6(f), is
an independent violation of NEPA’ s implementing regulations and, further, frustrates the requirement
that the Secretary solicit the views of locd and state governments affected by a proposed land-into-trust

transfer prior to ruling on such arequest. See 42 U.S.C. § 4332(2)(C).
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255. The Determination was arbitrary and capricious, an abuse of discretion, and otherwise
not in accordance with law as the Determination was based on an EIS which was drafted in a manner
inconsstent with NEPA and its implementing regulations.

SEVENTEENTH CAUSE OF ACTION
THE DETERMINATION EXCEEDED THE SECRETARY'SSTATUTORY AUTHORITY
AND ISOTHERWISE NOT IN ACCORDANCE WITH LAW BECAUSE IT VIOLATES 25

U.S.C. 8§2719(b) IN THAT IT PURPORTSTO TAKE LAND INTO TRUST FOR CLASSIII
GAMING WITHOUT THE CONSENT OF THE GOVERNOR OF NEW YORK

256. Repeat and redlege the dlegations of paragraphs 1 to 255 asif fully set forth herein.

257. The OIN offers casino-type gaming a Turning Stone Casino and dearly intends to
continue to offer such gaming at Turning Stone Casino if the subject land is taken into trust.

258. Theland that the Secretary has determined to take into trust includes the land on which
Turning Stone Casino is located.

259.  Subject to certain limited exceptions, IGRA prohibits the Secretary from taking land
into trust for the purpose of gaming after the October 17, 1988 enactment of the IGRA. 25 U.SC. §
2719.

260. The only exception with any conceivable gpplication to the OIN and its Turning Stone
Casino requires the Secretary to determine that gaming on the subject land would be “in the best interest
of the Indian tribe and its members” “not be detrimenta to the surrounding community,” and, crucidly,
requires the Governor of the State in which the gaming activity is to be conducted to concur with such

determinations of the Secretary. 25 U.S.C. § 2719(b)(1)(A).
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261. DOl guideines mandate that such determinations regarding the advisability of gaming
and efforts to obtain the concurrence of the Governor of the State in which the gaming activity isto be
conducted occur independently from the notification process for land into trust applications prescribed
by 25 C.F.R. 8 151. See Office of Indian Gaming Management, Checklist for Gaming Acquisitions,
Gaming-Rdlated Acquisitions and IGRA Section 20 Determinations, dated March 2005, at 8.

262. The Secretary has not made the findings mandated by Section 2719(b) nor has he
attempted to obtain the concurrence of the Governor of New Y ork with respect to such findings as
required by that section.

263. Ingtead, the ROD claims that “[t]he casno is Stuated within the Oneida reservation on
Indian lands as required by IGRA” evidently attempting to invoke Section 2719(a) which permits land
to be taken into trust for gaming after 1988 if such “...lands are located within or contiguous to the
boundaries of the reservation of the Indian tribe on October 17, 1988.” The implication in the ROD —
that Turning Stone Casino is located “within or contiguous’ to lands that were areservation of the OIN
on October 17, 1988 — is fundamentdly at odds with the DOI definition of Indian reservation contained
in the regulations governing land into trust gpplications. Since the OIN is not recognized as having
sovereignty over the casino property that land is not an Indian reservation under the DOI regulations.

264. Asareault, the Secretary’ s decision to take land to be used by the OIN for casino type
gaming isin clear contravention of IGRA and the DOI’ s own regulations and therefore exceeds the

Secretary’ s statutory authority and is otherwise not in accordance with law.
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PRAYER FOR RELIEF
WHEREFORE, Plaintiffs demand an order and judgment as follows:

1 Declaring Defendants' actions in taking the subject lands into trust to be arbitrary and
capricious, an abuse of discretion, in excess of the Secretary’ s satutory authority, uncongtitutiona, and
otherwise not in accordance with law;,

2. Enjoining the Defendants from taking any of the subject lands into trugt;

3. Enjoining the Defendants from taking any of the subject landsinto trust that are subject
to leases, easements, or rights of way without provison for an effective enforcement mechanism
including an appropriate waiver of sovereign immunity by the OIN and the United States;

4, Enjoining the Defendants from taking any of the subject landsinto trust until after fully
complying with the Nationa Environmentd Policy Act, indluding the drafting of an Environmenta Impact
Statement in a manner conggtent with the Nationd Environmenta Policy Act;

5. Enjoining the Defendants from taking any of the subject lands into trust until al
outstanding tax liens on such lands have been satisfied and the OIN actually tenders marketable title to
such lands to the DOI;

6. Awarding Plaintiffs their costs and disbursements, and;

7. Granting Plaintiffs such other and further relief asthis Court deems just, equitable and

proper.
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